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George Bowlus House 
Middletown 
Private 

Circa 1790 

The George Bowlus House was one of the principal buildings of 
Middletown located just north of the Lutheran Church, it dominated 
the town. 

Although an exact building date could not be determined from an 
initial title search of the land, close inspection of the building 
before its demolition indicates that it was definitely built in 
the late eighteenth or early nineteenth century. The Flemish bond 
brick facade and molded water table distinguished it as one of the 
finest brick residences in Middletown. Although numerous changes 
had taken place in the building, particularly in 1917 when the 
interior was modernized and the third floor was added, many of the 
important early architectural features remained including a very 
fine Federal style staircase, beaded chair railing, baseboard and 
mantelpieces. A very ornate Victorian frame porch with cast iron 
cresting dominated the front of the building and had become a 
landmark in the town. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The Bowlus House is a three story flat roofed brick residence laid in 
Flemish and common bond which faces west from the east side of Main St. 
in Middletown. The building exhibits style changes of three main periods, 
Federal, late Victorian and early Twentieth Century. 

The principal facade is five bays wide. Two main entrances are located 
in the second and fifth bays. Originally the door located in the second 
bay on the first level was situated further north than it is now as 
indicated by changes in the brickwork. The door in the fifth bay replaced 
a window. Both doors, which are almost identical, are half light and 
four panel doors inset into panel entryways with vertical panels and 
rounded molding. Over each door are three light transoms. 

Occupying the remaining bays on the first level are double hung 6/6 
windows surrounded by rounded molding. A decorative frame porch with 
hipped roof extends across the front of the building and on the north 
side of the first level. The porch is supported by ten full and two 
half turned columns with scrolled brackets located at five foot intervals 
with tongue and groove floor and ceiling. The foundation of the porch 
consists of square brick supports located directly underneath each 
column. Trellis work sections are located in between each brick support. 
A sawn work railing and decorative spindle work between the columns were 
once part of the porch as indicated in a 1906 photograph of the building. 
The most prominent feature of the porch and house is cast iron cresting 
which decorates the roofline of the porch. 

The second floor of the building consists of five bays with 2/2 windows 
located in all but the third bay. A double hung 2/2 window with molded 
and paneled movable apron or jib is located in the third bay on the 
second level. Jack arches are located over each bay on the first and 
second levels. 

Originally the house was a two and one-half story gable roofed structure 
laid in Flemish bond on the front of the building with a dentiled cornice. 
In 1917, a third floor was added to the building to accommodate apartments. 
The first floor of the building was at that time in use as a store and 
town telephone exchange. When the third floor of the building was added 
it changed its Federal appearance to an Italianate style building. 

The third level is laid in common bond and painted red. It is finished 
by a plain boxed cornice supported by scrolled brackets with mold 
frieze trim. 

The entire residence is built on a low random stone foundation and 
covered by a flat tin roof. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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The George Bowlus House was one of the principal buildings of Middletown 
located just north of the Lutheran Church, it dominated the town. 

Although an exact building date could not be determined from an initial 
title search of the land, close inspection of the building before its 
demolition indicates that it was definitely built in the late eighteenth 
or early nineteenth century. The Flemish bond brick facade and molded 
water table distinguished it as one of the finest brick residences in 
Middletown. Although numerous changes had taken place in the building, 
particularly in 1917 when the interior was modernized and the third floor 
was added, many of the important early architectural features remained 
including a very fine Federal style staircase, beaded chair railing, 
baseboard and mantelpieces. A very ornate Victorian frame porch with 
cast iron cresting dominated the front of the building and had become a 
landmark in the town. 

Although the original ownership and builder of the George Bowlus House is 
now known, research of the land title indicates that Frederick Stembel 
owned the house and land by 1838 when his will was written. 1 Upon his 
death in November, 1840, all Stembel's property was ordered sold. A 
public sale was held on the premises of the house on February 23, 1841.2 
Whether Stembel was actually living in the house upon his death is not 
known. In April, 1841 when the house was sold by Stembel's executor, 
Christopher Michael, to Rebecca Hammond it is known that a Washington H. 
Harbaugh, who four years later purchased the land, was 11 in the occupancy 
and possession of 11 

.. the house. 3 

In 1846 John and Jacob Culler purchased the building for $3,000.00 and 
owned it until John Culler's death when it was sold to Perry Levy for 
$962.00 in 1890.4 Some of the 11 Victorianization 11 of the building must 
have taken place at this time because just nine years later the house 
was sold for over twice as much to Samuel Kefauver.5 

Kefauver also owned the house until 1931 when his executor sold it to 
Ora and Esta Ahalt who owned it until 1950.6 

In 1950 Alta Louella Bowlus purchased the building.7 The Bowlus family 
was the last owner of the house selling it to the Zion Lutheran Church 
in 1980 who subsequently demolished the house 11 so that the church could 
have a better setting." 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY (Footnotes, other page.) 
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7. DESCRIPTION 

George Bowlus House 

Two additions extend to the rear of the main block. In the northeast corner 
extends a two story frame shed roofed addition constructed of log with German 
joints. The lower portion of the log is exposed on the north and east sides, 
covered with wide board siding over which has been placed German siding on 
the remainder of the building. 

A large shouldered exterior stone and brick chimney rises from the center of 
the east side of the log and frame addition. This addition is constructed on 
a low random stone foundation with shed tin roof. 

A one story common bond brick flat roofed kitchen addition extends in the 
southeast corner of the building. 

A small square one story gable roofed outbuilding laid in common bond brick 
with stepped brick cornice and gable vents is located to the rear of the 
residence. 



SIGNIFICANCE 

George Bowlus House (F-4-14) 

Footnotes 

1Frederick County Register of Wills, Liber GME 2; Folio 558. 

2Frederick County Land Records, Liber WBT 3; Folio 134. 

3Ibid., Liber WBT 3; Folio 133. 

4Ibid., Liber WIP 11; Folio 410. 

5rbid., Liber DHH 3; Folio 495. 

6Ibid., Liber 378; Folio 108. 

7Ibid., Liber, 416; Folio 337. 
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